Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007-)

2017

Gaspar Avila, Petitioner and Appellant, vs. Taylorsville City, Respondent and Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

Ó

 $\langle\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\rangle$

(a) exoneration through DNA testing under Section 78B-9-303; or
(b) factual innocence under Section 78B-9-401.
(5) Sections 77-19-8, 78B-2-104, and 78B-2-111 do not extend the limitations period established in this section.

Renumbered and Amended by Chapter 3, 2008 General Session Amended by Chapter 288, 2008 General Session Amended by Chapter 358, 2008 General Session

2. Utah Constitution, Article I, Section 11. [Courts open -- Redress of injuries.]

All courts shall be open, and every person, for an injury done to him in his person, property or reputation, shall have remedy by due course of law, which shall be administered without denial or unnecessary delay; and no person shall be barred from prosecuting or defending before any tribunal in this State, by himself or counsel, any civil cause to which he is a party.

Utah Constitution, Article I, Section 7 [Due process of law.]
 No person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law.

II. Petitioner Argues That The Court Inappropriately Granted Summary Judgment

Petitioner argues that after reviewing the pleadings, proffer, and evidence,

on May 27, 2016, the Court incorrectly granted Taylorsville City's (the "City")

motion for summary judgment.^{6&7}

⁷ Please refer to the transcripts at pages 186-253 of the record.

۲

٢

۲

٢

6

٩

۲

100

0

⁶ Please refer to the Order Granting Summary Judgment And Denying Petitioner Relief at pages 171-172 of the record.

nportance to this issue of the

۲

6

PCRA Petition and its accompanying Memorandum;⁸ (2) Petitioner's Memorandum in Response to Respondent's Motion;⁹ and (3) Petitioner's oral arguments presented to the Court at all of the court hearings held on this matter.¹⁰ The appropriate appellate review standard to contest the Court's incorrect ruling that granted the City's motion for summary judgment is based on the following holding from the Lucky Seven court, "In reviewing a summary judgment, we apply the analytical standard

The issue was appropriately preserved via the following: (1) Petitioner's

"In reviewing a summary judgment, we apply the analytical standard required of the trial court. We liberally construe the facts and view the evidence in a light most favorable to the party opposing the motion. Moreover, because a summary judgment is granted as a matter of law rather than fact, we are free to reappraise the trial court's legal conclusion. After reviewing the facts in the light most favorable to appellant, if we conclude there is a dispute as to a material issue of fact, we must reverse the trial court's determination and remand for trial on that issue. It is inappropriate for courts to weigh disputed material facts in ruling on a summary judgment. It matters not that the evidence on one side may appear to be strong or even compelling. One sworn statement under oath is all that is needed to dispute the averments on the other side of the controversy and create an issue of fact, precluding the entry of summary judgment," (citations and quotations omitted). Lucky Seven Rodeo Corp. v. Clark, 755 P.2d 750, 752 (Utah App. 1988).

The constitutional provisions, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations

whose interpretation is determinative or of central importance to this issue of the

appeal are as follows:

6

6)

(in)

6)

6

6

⁸ Please refer to pages 1-69 of the record.

⁹ Please refer to pages 116-125 of the record.

¹⁰ Please refer to the transcripts at pages 186-253 of the record.

1. Utah Constitution, Article I, Section 11. [Courts open -- Redress of injuries.]

All courts shall be open, and every person, for an injury done to him in his person, property or reputation, shall have remedy by due course of law, which shall be administered without denial or unnecessary delay; and no person shall be barred from prosecuting or defending before any tribunal in this State, by himself or counsel, any civil cause to which he is a party.

- Utah Constitution, Article I, Section 7 [Due process of law.]
 No person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law.
- 3. Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 56.

Rule 56. Summary judgment.

٢

6

١

٢

Ø

٢

٢

(iii)

٢

٨

٢

(a) Motion for summary judgment or partial summary judgment. A party may move for summary judgment, identifying each claim or defense—or the part of each claim or defense—on which summary judgment is sought. The court shall grant summary judgment if the moving party shows that there is no genuine dispute as to any material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. The court should state on the record the reasons for granting or denying the motion. The motion and memoranda must follow Rule <u>7</u> as supplemented below.

(a)(1) Instead of a statement of the facts under Rule $\underline{7}$, a motion for summary judgment must contain a statement of material facts claimed not to be genuinely disputed. Each fact must be separately stated in numbered paragraphs and supported by citing to materials in the record under paragraph (c)(1) of this rule.

(a)(2) Instead of a statement of the facts under Rule <u>7</u>, a memorandum opposing the motion must include a verbatim restatement of each of the

moving party's facts that is disputed with an explanation of the grounds for the dispute supported by citing to materials in the record under paragraph (c)(1) of this rule. The memorandum may contain a separate statement of additional materials facts in dispute, which must be separately stated in numbered paragraphs and similarly supported.

(a)(3) The motion and the memorandum opposing the motion may contain a concise statement of facts, whether disputed or undisputed, for the limited purpose of providing background and context for the case, dispute and motion.

(a)(4) Each material fact set forth in the motion or in the memorandum opposing the motion under paragraphs (a)(1) and (a)(2) that is not disputed is deemed admitted for the purposes of the motion.

(b) Time to file a motion. A party seeking to recover upon a claim, counterclaim or cross-claim or to obtain a declaratory judgment may move for summary judgment at any time after service of a motion for summary judgment by the adverse party or after 21 days from the commencement of the action. A party against whom a claim, counterclaim, or cross-claim is asserted or a declaratory judgment is sought may move for summary judgment at any time. Unless the court orders otherwise, a party may file a motion for summary judgment at any time no later than 28 days after the close of all discovery.

(c) Procedures.

(c)(1) Supporting factual positions. A party asserting that a fact cannot be genuinely disputed or is genuinely disputed must support the assertion by:
(c)(1)(A) citing to particular parts of materials in the record, including depositions, documents, electronically stored information, affidavits or

7

٢

٢

6

6

6

6

٩

6

declarations, stipulations (including those made for purposes of the motion only), admissions, interrogatory answers, or other materials; or (c)(1)(B) showing that the materials cited do not establish the absence or presence of a genuine dispute.

0

6

0

 $\langle g \rangle$

٢

٦

()

0

۲

٢

(c)(2) Objection that a fact is not supported by admissible evidence. A party may object that the material cited to support or dispute a fact cannot be presented in a form that would be admissible in evidence.

(c)(3) Materials not cited. The court need consider only the cited materials, but it may consider other materials in the record.

(c)(4) Affidavits or declarations. An affidavit or declaration used to support or oppose a motion must be made on personal knowledge, must set out facts that would be admissible in evidence, and must show that the affiant or declarant is competent to testify on the matters stated.

(d) When facts are unavailable to the nonmoving party. If a nonmoving party shows by affidavit or declaration that, for specified reasons, it cannot present facts essential to justify its opposition, the court may:

(d)(1) defer considering the motion or deny it without prejudice;

(d)(2) allow time to obtain affidavits or declarations or to take discovery; or (d)(3) issue any other appropriate order.

(e) Failing to properly support or address a fact. If a party fails to properly support an assertion of fact or fails to properly address another party's assertion of fact as required by paragraph (c), the court may:

(e)(1) give an opportunity to properly support or address the fact;

(e)(2) consider the fact undisputed for purposes of the motion;

	(e)(3) grant summary judgment if the motion and supporting materials—	
	including the facts considered undisputed—show that the moving party is	6
	entitled to it; or	
	(e)(4) issue any other appropriate order.	
	(f) Judgment independent of the motion. After giving notice and a	6
	reasonable time to respond, the court may:	
	(f)(1) grant summary judgment for a nonmoving party;	
	(f)(2) grant the motion on grounds not raised by a party; or	6
	(f)(3) consider summary judgment on its own after identifying for the parties	
	material facts that may not be genuinely in dispute.	
	(g) Failing to grant all the requested relief. If the court does not grant all the	Ó
	relief requested by the motion, it may enter an order stating any material	
	fact—including an item of damages or other relief—that is not genuinely in	
	dispute and treating the fact as established in the case.	Ŵ
	(h) Affidavit or declaration submitted in bad faith. If satisfied that an	
	affidavit or declaration under this rule is submitted in bad faith or solely for	
	delay, the court—after notice and a reasonable time to respond—may order	6
	the submitting party to pay the other party the reasonable expenses,	
	including attorney's fees, it incurred as a result. The court may also hold an	
	offending party or attorney in contempt or order other appropriate sanctions.	٢
4.	Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 11(e).	
	(e) The court may refuse to accept a plea of guilty, no contest or guilty and mentally ill, and may not accept the plea until the court has found:	۵
	(e)(1) if the defendant is not represented by counsel, he or she has	
	knowingly waived the right to counsel and does not desire counsel;	6
	9	

(e)(2) the plea is voluntarily made;

٨

٨

۲

۲

6

٢

٨

0

Ø

۲

(e)(3) the defendant knows of the right to the presumption of innocence, the right against compulsory self-incrimination, the right to a speedy public trial before an impartial jury, the right to confront and cross-examine in open court the prosecution witnesses, the right to compel the attendance of defense witnesses, and that by entering the plea, these rights are waived;

(e)(4)(A) the defendant understands the nature and elements of the offense to which the plea is entered, that upon trial the prosecution would have the burden of proving each of those elements beyond a reasonable doubt, and that the plea is an admission of all those elements;

(e)(4)(B) there is a factual basis for the plea. A factual basis is sufficient if it establishes that the charged crime was actually committed by the defendant or, if the defendant refuses or is otherwise unable to admit culpability, that the prosecution has sufficient evidence to establish a substantial risk of conviction;

(e)(5) the defendant knows the minimum and maximum sentence, and if applicable, the minimum mandatory nature of the minimum sentence, that may be imposed for each offense to which a plea is entered, including the possibility of the imposition of consecutive sentences;

(e)(6) if the tendered plea is a result of a prior plea discussion and plea agreement, and if so, what agreement has been reached;

(e)(7) the defendant has been advised of the time limits for filing any motion to withdraw the plea; and (e)(8) the defendant has been advised that the right of appeal is limited.

These findings may be based on questioning of the defendant on the record or, if used, a written statement reciting these factors after the court has established that the defendant has read, understood, and acknowledged the contents of the statement. If the defendant cannot understand the English language, it will be sufficient that the statement has been read or translated to the defendant.

	STATEMENT OF THE CASE	Ŵ
I.	Nature Of The Case	
	This appeal is based on: (1) the Court's incorrect determination that	۲
Petiti	oner untimely filed his PCRA Petition; and (2) the Court's incorrect ruling	
grant	ing the City's motion for summary judgment. ^{11&12}	6
II.	Course Of Proceedings	
	On February 27, 2007, Petitioner pled guilty plea to Driving Under The	6
Influ	ence Of ALC/Drugs, a Class B Misdemeanor, in violation of UCA § 41-6A-	Ŵ
502. ¹	³ On December 8, 2015, Petitioner filed his PCRA Petition and its	
accor	mpanying Memorandum. ¹⁴ On February 12, 2016, the City filed its Motion	Q
for S	ummary Judgment. ¹⁵ On March 14, 2016, Petitioner filed the Memorandum	
in Re	esponse to Respondent's Motion. ¹⁶ On May 27, 2016, there was a court	۲
heari	ng on the above-mentioned pleadings. ¹⁷ On June 2, 2016, there was a	
		۲
	ease refer to the Order Granting Summary Judgment And Denying Petitioner of at pages 171-172 of the record.	
	ease refer to the transcripts at pages 186-253 of the record. ease refer to pages 23-28 of the record.	۲

Unless specifically required by statute or rule, a court is not required to inquire into or advise concerning any collateral consequences of a plea. 6

٢

¹⁴ Please refer to pages 1-69 of the record.
¹⁵ Please refer to pages 84-113 of the record.
¹⁶ Please refer to pages 116-125 of the record.
¹⁷ Please refer to the transcripts at pages 213-244 of the record.

telephonic conference on the above-mentioned pleadings.¹⁸ At the conclusion of said hearings, the Court ruled that Petitioner's PCRA Petition was untimely filed, and granted the City's motion for summary judgment.^{19&20}

٢

٢

6

٢

٢

6

٢

٨

٢

٢

0

III. Statement Of Facts

- On February 27, 2007, Petitioner pled guilty to Driving Under The Influence Of ALC/Drugs, a Class B Misdemeanor, in violation of UCA § 41-6A-502.²¹
- 2. Petitioner timely filed his PCRA Petition on December 8, 2015.^{22,23,24&25}
- Petitioner presented disputed material facts to the Court, which requires the Court to deny the City's motion for summary judgment.^{26,27,28&29}

¹⁸ Please refer to the transcripts at pages 245-253 of the record.

¹⁹ Please refer to the Order Granting Summary Judgment And Denying Petitioner Relief at pages 171-172 of the record.

²⁰ Please refer to the transcripts at pages 213-253 of the record.

²¹ Please refer to pages 23-28 of the record.

²² Please refer to Petitioner's PCRA Memorandum, at pages 17-20 of the record.

²³ Please refer to Petitioner's Affidavit, at pages 30-31 of the record.

²⁴ Please refer to Petitioner's Memorandum in Response to Respondent's Motion, at pages 120-124 of the record.

²⁵ Please refer to the transcripts at pages 213-253 of the record.

²⁶ Please refer to Petitioner's PCRA Memorandum, at pages 9-69 of the record

²⁷ Please refer to Petitioner's Affidavit, at pages 30-31 of the record.

²⁸ Please refer to Petitioner's Memorandum in Response to Respondent's Motion, at pages 116-125 of the record.

²⁹ Please refer to the transcripts at pages 213-253 of the record.

MARSHALLING THE EVIDENCE

6

6

60

٢

砂

6

6

٧

۷

I. Marshaling The Evidence Is Not Required As Petitioner Is Not Challenging The Evidence, But Rather The Court's Legal Conclusions <u>Drawn Therefrom</u>

The Utah Auto court held,

"Utah Auto is not challenging the evidence underlying the court's decision, but the legal conclusions drawn therefrom. Thus, Utah Auto need not marshal." <u>Utah Auto Auction v. Labor Comm'n</u>, 2008 UT App 29, n. 4, 191 P.3d 1252.

In regard to marshalling, the Nielsen court held,

"Too often, the appellee's brief is focused on this latter point, and not enough on the ultimate merits of the case. To encourage the latter and discourage the former, we also hereby repudiate the requirements of playing devil's advocate and of presenting every scrap of competent evidence in a comprehensive and fastidious order. That formulation is nowhere required in the rule. And its principal impact on briefing has been to incentivize appellees to conduct a fastidious review of the record in the hope of identifying a scrap of evidence the appellant may have overlooked. That is not the point of the marshaling rule, and will no longer be an element of our consideration of it," (citations and quotations omitted). State v. Nielsen, 2014 UT 10, ¶ 43, 326 P.3d 645.

Here, marshalling is not required, pursuant to <u>Utah Auto</u>, because Petitioner is not challenging the evidence underlying the court's decision, but the legal conclusions drawn therefrom. Notwithstanding, Petitioner lists all of the evidence provided to the Court as follows: (1) Petitioner's court docket for case number 061117770;³⁰ (2) Petitioner's Affidavit;³¹ (3) the English translation of the Waiver;³² (4) the Spanish Waiver;³³ (4) Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 11(e) 2007;³⁴ (5) a copy of <u>Pinder v. State</u>;³⁵ and (6) a copy of Petitioner's request for discovery.³⁶

After reviewing said evidence, Petitioner did not discover any new evidence

that he may have overlooked, as required by Nielsen. Accordingly, Petitioner

prays the Appellate Court to determine that Petitioner's marshalling is sufficient,

thereby allowing the Appellate Court to consider the merits of Petitioner's appeal.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

I. The Court Incorrectly Determined That Petitioner's PCRA Petition Was Untimely Pursuant To UCA § 78B-9-107

In relation to the PCRA timeliness issues the Pinder court held,

"Our cases establish that a defendant could have raised a claim when he or his counsel is aware of the essential factual basis for asserting it," (quotations omitted). <u>Pinder v. State</u>, 2015 UT 56, ¶ 44, 367 P.3d 968.

The Lovell court held,

۲

٢

0

Ś

0

٨

٨

٢

Viild

0

"we held that because of the importance of compliance with Rule 11(e) ... the law places the burden of establishing compliance with those

³⁰ Please refer to pages 23-28 of the record.

³¹ Please refer to pages 30-31 of the record.

³² Please refer to pages 35-41 of the record.

³³ Please refer to pages 42-45 of the record.

³⁴ Please refer to pages 47-49 of the record.

³⁵ Please refer to pages 51-65 of the record.

³⁶ Please refer to pages 67-69 of the record.

requirements on the trial judge. The trial judge must fulfill the ... requirements imposed by [rule 11(e)] on the record before accepting the guilty plea. Although rule 11(e) does not require the judge to personally address the defendant regarding the rights the defendant is waiving, our cases impose a duty on the trial judge under rule 11(e) to determine that a defendant has been affirmatively advised of the rights he is waiving," (citations and quotations omitted). <u>State v. Lovell</u>, 2011 UT 36, ¶ 12, 262 P.3d 803. 6

6

6

6

2

٩

6

٧

6

Here, the Taylorsville Justice Court (the "Plea Court"), possessed the duty to comply with Rule 11(e) pursuant to <u>Lovell</u>. However, the Plea Court failed to comply with the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 11(e), thereby violating Petitioner's constitutional right to due process.³⁷ Petitioner reasonably relied on the Plea Court's disposition of his matter as being appropriate and constitutionally valid. At no point did Petitioner have any reason to believe that the Plea Court violated his constitutional right to due process because it failed to abide by Rule 11(e).

As such, it is impossible for Petitioner to file an appeal, nor could he have raised a claim regarding the Plea Court's failure to comply with Rule 11(e), because he was not aware of the essential factual basis for asserting it.

The Court's incorrect ruling is based on the unrealistic idea that Petitioner, who was not represented by counsel, and is a lay person, was aware of Rule 11(e) and its constitutional implications on the day he pled guilty. Most attorneys are unaware of Rule 11(e), unless they practice criminal law on a regular basis. For

³⁷ As completely described below.

this exact scenario, the legislature carved out an exception in UCA § 78-B-9(107)(2)(e), which states in pertinent part,
"for purposes of this section, the cause of action accrues on the latest of the following dates: the date on which petitioner knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of evidentiary facts on which the petition is based."

٢

0

Ø

0

6

۲

0

٢

0

۲

0

Said statue is further buttressed by a large volume of case law that protects Petitioner's right to due process via Rule 11(e). Said case law equitably states that if a defendant's constitutional right to due process is violated via Rule 11(e), then the court must withdraw the plea and vacate the sentence, otherwise the court abuses its discretion.³⁸

Common sense and equity dictates that Petitioner be allowed to file his PCRA Petition within the one year period of when he became aware that his constitutional right to due process was violated by the Plea Court. Therefore, it is appropriate for the Appellate Court to remand with instructions to the Court that Petitioner's PCRA Petition was timely filed. Further, this disputed fact of timeliness, in and of itself, is sufficient for the Court to deny the City's motion for summary judgment.

³⁸ As completely described below.

۲

۵

۲

2

٢

60

6

6

۲

II. The Trial Court Incorrectly Granted Summary Judgment In Violation Of Lucky Seven

Here, it does not matter whether or not the City's evidence, in its motion for summary judgment, may appear to be strong or even compelling pursuant to Lucky Seven. What does matter is that Petitioner presented the disputed material facts to the Court,³⁹ and it is inappropriate for the Court to weigh said disputed material facts in its summary judgment ruling pursuant to Lucky Seven. Said disputed material facts as presented by Petitioner are as follows: (a) a sufficient record exists to determine that Petitioner's constitutional right to due process was violated, as more thoroughly explained in subsection "A", starting on page 28; (b) it is appropriate for the Court to apply the Lovell standard, as more thoroughly explained in subsection "B", starting on page 30; (c) the Waiver and other documents are invalid as they were not incorporated into the record, as more thoroughly explained in subsection "C", starting on page 31; (d) Petitioner's plea is unknowing and involuntary since the waiver and other documents were not incorporated into the record, as more thoroughly explained in subsection "D", starting on page 33; (e) Petitioner's plea is still unknowing and involuntary in the event the Court inappropriately chooses to rely on the unincorporated Waiver, as more thoroughly explained in subsection "E",

³⁹ In addition to the disputed material fact that Petitioner's PCRA Petition was timely filed, as discussed above.

starting on page 34; and (f) the Court abused its discretion, as more thoroughly
 explained in subsection "F", starting on page 36. It is appropriate for the Appellate
 Court to review said disputed facts in a light most favorable to Petitioner, and if the
 Appellate Court concludes that there is a dispute to said material issues of fact, then
 the Court's summary judgment decision must be reversed pursuant to Lucky Seven.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE:The Court Incorrectly Determined That Petitioner's PCRA**Petition Was Untimely Pursuant To UCA § 78B-9-107**

٨	It is appropriate for the Appellate Court to remand with instructions to the
-	Court stating that Petitioner timely filed his PCRA Petition.
	The <u>Gardner</u> court held,
٨	"Broadly speaking, if a defendant's sentence or conviction is affirmed after direct appeal, or if no direct appeal is taken, the convicted person may pursue a post-conviction remedy by filing a petition under the PCRA." Gardner v. State, 2010 UT 46, ¶ 58, 234 P.3d 1115.
٨	Here, Petitioner did not file a direct appeal for his underlying matter, and
	therefore, Petitioner properly filed his PCRA Petition pursuant to Gardner.
٢	I. <u>Petitioner Satisfies The PCRA Procedural Bar</u>
	The Gardner court describes the two PCRA time bars, i.e. the procedural bar
٨	and the limitations bar, wherein, under the procedural bar,
ن ه ا	"the petitioner may not seek relief based on grounds that may still be raised on direct appeal or by a post-trial motion, or on grounds that were already raised at trial or on direct appeal or could have been but [were] not raised at trial or on appeal. Relief is also precluded if the grounds

0

٢

for relief asserted by the petitioner were raised and addressed in a prior post-conviction proceeding or if the grounds could have been, but [were] not, raised in a prior post-conviction proceeding," (citations and quotations omitted). <u>Gardner v. State</u> , 2010 UT 46, ¶ 59, 234 P.3d 1115.	٢
However, in relation to the PCRA procedural bar the Pinder court held,	۵
"Our cases establish that a defendant could have raised a claim when he or his counsel is aware of the essential factual basis for asserting it. And that conclusion holds even when the defendant later discovers additional evidence providing further support for the claim," (quotations omitted). <u>Pinder v. State</u> , 2015 UT 56, ¶ 44, 367 P.3d 968.	٤
The Lovell court held,	
"we held that because of the importance of compliance with Rule 11(e) the law places the burden of establishing compliance with those requirements on the trial judge. The trial judge must fulfill the requirements imposed by [rule 11(e)] on the record before accepting the guilty plea. Although rule 11(e) does not require the judge to personally address the defendant regarding the rights the defendant is waiving, our cases impose a duty on the trial judge under rule 11(e) to determine that a defendant has been affirmatively advised of the rights he is waiving," (citations and quotations omitted). <u>State v. Lovell</u> , 2011 UT 36, ¶ 12, 262 P.3d 803.	ني ن ن
Here, the Plea Court possessed the duty to comply with Rule 11(e) pursuant to	
Lovell. However, the Plea Court failed to comply with Rule 11(e), thereby violating	٢
Petitioner's constitutional right to due process. Petitioner reasonably relied on the	
Plea Court's disposition of his matter as being appropriate and constitutionally valid.	6
At no point did Petitioner have any reason to believe that the Plea Court violated his	
At no point did Petitioner have any reason to believe that the Plea Court violated his	

6

٢

.

constitutional right to due process because it failed to abide by Rule 11(e). Petitioner reasonably relied on the Plea Court abiding by his constitutional right to due process

As such, it is impossible for Petitioner to file an appeal, nor could he have raised a claim regarding the Plea Court's failure to comply with Rule 11(e), because he was not aware of the essential factual basis for asserting it. Therefore, Petitioner overcomes the procedural bar pursuant to <u>Pinder</u>.

II. <u>Petitioner Satisfies The PCRA Limitations Bar</u>

The Gardner court held that the,

0

0

0

 \bigcirc

۲

0

۲

٢

6

۲

0

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