Brigham Young University Law School

BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007-)

2017

Gaspar Avila, Petitioner and Appellant, vs. Taylorsville City, Respondent and Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The PCRA allows a petitioner to seek relief only if the petition is filed within a one-year statute of limitations. The two events that could trigger that year in the instant case are: (1) the last day for filing an appeal from the entry of the final judgment of conviction, if no appeal is taken, or (2) the date on which the petitioner knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of evidentiary facts on which the petition is based.

Regarding the first possible instance, Avila did not appeal his conviction or sentence, and the last day for filing an appeal was a date over seven years prior to the filing of his petition under the PCRA. The statute of limitations had therefore expired several years prior to his filing.

Addressing the second possible instance, Avila bases his petition on an allegation that the justice court that took his plea did not strictly comply with Rule 11(e) of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, alleging consequently that his plea was not knowing and voluntary. However, he provides no new material evidentiary facts that have come forth since his time to appeal lapsed. Instead he mistakenly labels his later recognition of the legal significance of long-known/available facts as new "facts". As the underlying facts to his Rule 11(e) allegation were known or available to Avila years prior to him filing his petition, the one-year limitation had long expired by the time he filed his petition.

In both instances, the statute of limitations expired years prior to Avila filing his petition. Avila's petition was therefore barred by the statute limitations of the PCRA. Avila attempts to show genuine dispute of material facts by asserting unrelated facts as "material" to the time-bar issue. He also misunderstands the difference between a dispute over legal significance of a fact and a dispute over the fact itself, mislabeling the former as the latter. Taking into account his misguided labels, there are no material facts in genuine dispute with regard to the issue of the time-bar on Avila's petition. With no genuine dispute over actual material facts, and Avila having exceeded the one-year time limitation, summary judgment is appropriate. This Court should therefore affirm the district court's decision granting summary judgment and denying/dismissing Avila's petition based on failure to satisfy the statute of limitations of the PCRA.

ARGUMENT

- I. THE CORRECTNESS OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN THIS CASE TURNS ON TWO KEY DISTINCTIONS MISUNDERSTOOD BY AVILA:
 - A. DISTINCTION #1: THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN ACTUAL NEW FACTS THAT COME TO A PETITIONER'S KNOWLEDGE, AS OPPOSED TO THE REALIZATION OF THE LEGAL SIGNIFICANCE OF FACTS ALREADY PRESENT.

The PCRA allows a petitioner to seek post-conviction relief only if the petition is filed within a one-year statute of limitations. *See* Utah Code Ann. § 78B-9-107(1). The one-year period accrues on the latest date corresponding to a "cause of action"

event. *Id.* The two such events relevant to the instant inquiry include: (1) the last day for filing an appeal from the entry of a final judgment of conviction, if no appeal is taken, and (2) the date on which the petitioner knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of evidentiary facts on which his petition is based. *Id.* at § 78B-9-107(2)(a, e).

With regard to the last date for filing an appeal, there is no confusion. Avila did not file an appeal after conviction and sentencing on the charge of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol/Drugs, and the last day for filing an appeal was a date over seven years prior to the filing of his petition under the PCRA. The statute of limitations in this instance had therefore expired several years prior to Avila filing his petition in 2015.

6

The date on which Avila knew or should have known of evidentiary facts on which his petition is based is the matter regarding which Avila misunderstands. In this instance, "the time for filing begins to run when the petitioner knows or, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, should have known the evidentiary facts and *not when the petitioner recognizes their legal significance.*" *Brown v. State*, 2015 UT App. 254, ¶ 10, 361 P.3d 124 (ellipses, citation, and internal quotation marks omitted, emphasis added). In *Brown*, the basis of the defendant's claims were his trial counsel's statements, the trial counsel's alleged conflict of interest, and the defendant's use of prescription medication at the time of his plea. *Id.* at ¶ 11. The

defendant in *Brown* did not claim he was unaware of those facts when he pled guilty, only that he did not understand their significance at the time. *Id.* But ". . . coming to a better or more complete understanding of the practical import of his plea, is different from coming to know new evidentiary facts." *Id.* at \P 13.

Avila misunderstands this differentiation. He claims that his realization that Rule 11(e) was not followed constitutes a new evidentiary fact he did not know at the time of his conviction. This is a new legal conclusion he has come to, not a new evidentiary fact. No new evidentiary facts have been alleged by Avila that would not have been available at the time in which to appeal lapsed. Only the *legal significance* of facts already present has been newly discovered by Avila. As those facts, and any other facts of which he may he may have recognized legal or practical significance, were evident years prior to him filing his petition, the one-year limitation in this instance expired concurrent with the limitation that began accruing on the date his time to appeal had lapsed. Avila merely misunderstands the difference between actual, new evidentiary facts as opposed to the realization of the legal significance of facts already evident.

B. DISTINCTION #2: THERE IS NO GENUINE DISPUTE OF MATERIAL FACT – AVILA MERELY MISUNDERSTANDS THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN A MATERIAL FACT, AS OPPOSED TO A FACT THAT HAS NO SIGNIFICANCE IN DECIDING ON THE RELIEF REQUESTED, OR THAT IS NOT EVEN AN ACTUAL "FACT".

Where there is no genuine dispute as to any material fact, and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law, summary judgment is an appropriate remedy. Utah R. Civ. P., Rule 56(a). Summary judgment, however, is not precluded "simply whenever some fact remains in dispute, but only when a *material* fact is genuinely controverted." *Heglar Ranch Inc. v. Stillman*, 619 P.2d 1390, 1391 (Utah 1980) (emphasis added). The fact in dispute must be "material to [the] resolution of the underlying legal issue." *See Wilberg v. Hyatt*, 2012 UT App 233, ¶ 16, 285 P.3d 1249. The time-bar to Avila's petition is the underlying legal issue on which the district court granted summary judgment. Only facts necessary for the resolution of that issue, the time-bar, are therefore "material" to the summary judgment inquiry.

The facts material to the resolution of the legal time-bar issue are dictated by the determinative elements set forth in the PCRA's statute of limitations provision: (1) the last day for filing an appeal from the entry of the final judgment of conviction, if no appeal is taken, and (2) the date on which petitioner knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of evidentiary facts on which the petition is based. *See* Utah Code Ann. § 78B-9-107(2). A final judgment of conviction was entered against Avila on February 27, 2007, and Avila was sentenced that same day. (R. 95). No appeal was taken by Avila. (R. 95-98). The facts underlying Avila's Rule 11(e) allegation were evident when the time for Avila's appeal lapsed. There is no genuine dispute of these material facts.

Avila alleges to the contrary, however each of the several "facts" he sets forth as in dispute is either immaterial to the time-bar issue (i.e. his affidavit, which would, if anything, be related to the merits of the petition), or is actually a conclusion about the legal significance of a fact, not a genuine dispute of the fact itself.

Avila's circular, and rather dizzying arguments about disputed facts stem not from a genuine dispute of what actually took place on certain dates, rather from a failure to distinguish material facts from their legal significance. There is no dispute that Avila's guilty plea, conviction, and sentencing occurred on February 7, 2007. What Avila disputes, and mistakenly labels as fact, is his legal conclusion regarding their validity. There is also no genuine dispute that the 30 days in which to appeal expired on March 9, 2007. What Avila disputes, and again mistakenly labels as fact, is his legal conclusion about the triggering of the time to appeal, not the facts of the events themselves. Finally, there has been no genuine dispute raised over the actual presence or knowledge of the facts that much later gave rise to Avila's Rule 11(e) allegation in his petition. What Avila admits is that he only much later realized the legal significance of those facts. Whereas no actual material facts are in dispute, rather a legal conclusion or significance, summary judgment is appropriate and the district court's decision should be affirmed.

II. SUMMARY JUDGMENT IS APPROPRIATE AS A MATTER OF LAW BECAUSE AVILA FILED HIS PETITION OVER SEVEN YEARS AFTER THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS EXPIRED.

Having separated fact from legal significance, the subsequent conclusion of law is clear. Avila's time to appeal expired on March 9, 2007, and the facts underlying Avila's petition were evident at or by that same date. The one-year statute of limitations therefore began to run on that date, and itself expired on March 9, 2008. Avila filed his petition on December 8, 2015, well over seven years after the statutory time to do so. Avila's petition is therefore time-barred, as decided by the district court, and summary dismissal is appropriate.

CONCLUSION

Having no genuine dispute of material fact, and where Avila missed the statute of limitations by over seven years, this Court should affirm the district court's decision to grant the City's motion for summary judgment, denying and dismissing Avila's petition for post-conviction relief.